IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA CASE NO. SC00-1492

RANDALL SCOTT JONES,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE SEVENTH CIRCUIT COURT, IN AND FOR PUTNAM COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

HARRY P. BRODY FLORIDA BAR NO. 0977860 ASSISTANT CCRC

JEFFREY M. HAZEN
FLORIDA BAR NO. 0153060
CCRC-MIDDLE ATTORNEY

CAPITAL COLLATERAL REGIONAL COUNSEL-MIDDLE REGION 3801 Corporex Park Drive Suite 210 Tampa, Florida 33619 (813)740-3544

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

ARGUMENT II

	THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN SUMMARILY DENYING MERITORIOUS CLAIMS WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING. 34
INTR	ODUCTION
Α.	THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON HIS CLAIM THAT HE WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AT THE SENTENCING PHASE OF HIS TRIAL, IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. TRIAL COUNSEL WAS RENDERED INEFFECTIVE BY THE TRIAL COURT'S AND STATE'S ACTIONS. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO ADEQUATELY INVESTIGATE AND PREPARE ADDITIONAL MITIGATING EVIDENCE AND FAILED TO ADEQUATELY CHALLENGE THE STATE'S CASE AS WELL AS TO PRESENT EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES. COUNSEL FAILED TO ADEQUATELY OBJECT TO EIGHTH AMENDMENT ERROR. COUNSEL'S PERFORMANCE WAS DEFICIENT AND, AS A RESULT, THE DEATH SENTENCE IS UNRELIABLE
В.	THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON HIS CLAIM THAT HE WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AND HIS RIGHT TO EQUAL PROTECTION AND DUE PROCESS OF LAWS WHEN HIS REQUEST TO HAVE COUNSEL DISMISSED BECAUSE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST WAS DENIED. 48
C.	THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON HIS CLAIM THAT HE WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AT HIS CAPITAL TRIAL, IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WHEN TRIAL COUNSEL CONCEDED MR. JONES' GUILT
D.	THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES A HEARING ON HIS CLAIM THAT HE WAS DENIED HIS RIGHTS UNDER AKE V. OKLAHOMA AT THE GUILT AND PENALTY PHASES OF HIS CAPITAL TRIAL, WHEN COUNSEL WAS DENIED REQUESTED EXPERTS AND WHEN COUNSEL FAILED TO OBTAIN AN ADEQUATE MENTAL HEALTH EVALUATION BY FAILING TO PROVIDE THE NECESSARY BACKGROUND INFORMATION TO THE MENTAL HEALTH CONSULTANT, ALL IN VIOLATION OF MR. JONES' RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES

- F. THE LOWER COURT ERRONEOUSLY DENIED MR. JONES AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON HIS CLAIM THAT HE WAS DEPRIVED OF HIS RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS UNDER THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AS WELL AS HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND EIGHTH AMENDMENTS, BECAUSE THE STATE WITHHELD EVIDENCE WHICH WAS MATERIAL AND EXCULPATORY IN NATURE AND/OR PRESENTED MISLEADING EVIDENCE. SUCH OMISSIONS RENDERED DEFENSE COUNSEL'S REPRESENTATION INEFFECTIVE AND PREVENTED A FULL ADVERSARIAL TESTING. 64
- G. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES A HEARING ON THE CLAIM THAT HIS TRIAL COURT PROCEEDINGS WERE FRAUGHT WITH PROCEDURAL AND SUBSTANTIVE ERRORS, WHICH CANNOT BE HARMLESS WHEN VIEWED AS A WHOLE SINCE THE COMBINATION OF ERRORS DEPRIVED HIM OF THE FUNDAMENTALLY FAIR TRIAL GUARANTEED UNDER THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS . . 65
- H. MR. JONES WAS DENIED RELIEF ON HIS CLAIM THAT HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FOURTH, FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, WHEN THE PROSECUTOR IMPERMISSIBLY SUGGESTED TO THE JURY THE LAW REQUIRED THAT IT RECOMMEND A SENTENCE OF DEATH. . . . 67
- I. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES A HEARING ON HIS CLAIM THAT HIS DEATH SENTENCE VIOLATES THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION BECAUSE THE JUDGE CONSIDERED INADMISSIBLE VICTIM IMPACT EVIDENCE. TO THE EXTENT TRIAL AND APPELLATE COUNSEL FAILED TO PROPERLY LITIGATE THIS ISSUE, MR. JONES RECEIVED PREJUDICIALLY INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL. . . . 70

ARGUMENT III

THE	LOWER	COU	RT RU	LED	THAT	THE	FOL	LOWI	NG C	LAIMS	S WE	RE	TOM
THE	PROPE	R SU	BJECT	OF Z	A 3.8	350 M	OTIO	NC.	MR.	JONE	s co	NTE	NDS
THAT	THES	E CI	LAIMS	SHOU	JLD 1	TOI	BE P	ROCE	DURA:	LLY E	BARR!	ED	AND
ASSI	ERTS T	HEM F	HEREIN	I. MR	. JOI	NES A	RGUE.	ES TH	AT, I	DESPI	TE A	DVE	RSE
RULI	NGS,	DUE	PROC	ESS	AND	FUN	DAME	ENTAL	FA	IRNES	SS I	N	THE
CONT	EXT O	F A (CAPIT	AL CA	ASE M	ANDA'	TE T	'HAT '	THESE	E CLA	IMS	SHO	ULD
BE (ONSTD	ERED	ON TI	TF. MF	RTTS	<u>'</u>							73

- C. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES' CLAIM THAT HE WAS DENIED A RELIABLE SENTENCING IN HIS CAPITAL TRIAL BECAUSE THE SENTENCING JUDGE REFUSED AND FAILED TO FIND THE EXISTENCE OF MITIGATION ESTABLISHED BY THE EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD, CONTRARY TO THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS.
- D. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES RELIEF ON HIS CLAIM THAT HIS SENTENCING JURY WAS MISLED BY COMMENTS AND INSTRUCTIONS WHICH INACCURATELY AND UNCONSTITUTIONALLY DILUTED ITS SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR SENTENCING IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS . . 78
- E. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES' CLAIM THAT HE WAS DENIED A RELIABLE SENTENCING WHEN HIS JURY WAS IMPROPERLY INSTRUCTED THAT ONE SINGLE ACT SUPPORTED TWO SEPARATE AGGRAVATING FACTORS IN VIOLATION OF ESPINOSA V. FLORIDA, STRINGER V. BLACK, MAYNARD V. CARTWRIGHT, HITCHCOCK V. DUGGER, AND THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR NOT OBJECTING TO THESE INSTRUCTIONS DURING MR. JONES' PENALTY PHASE AND

r.	CLAIM THAT HIS SENTENCE OF DEATH VIOLATES THE FIFTH, SIXTE EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS BECAUSE THE PENALTY PHASE JURY INSTRUCTIONS SHIFTED THE BURDEN TO MR. JONES TO PROVIDENT DEATH WAS INAPPROPRIATE AND BECAUSE THE SENTENCING JUDGE HIMSELF EMPLOYED THIS IMPROPER STANDARD IN SENTENCING MR. JONES TO DEATH. FAILURE TO OBJECT OR ARGUE EFFECTIVE RENDERED DEFENSE COUNSEL'S REPRESENTATION INEFFECTIVE.	H, /E NC NC
G.	THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES A HEARING ON HICLAIM THAT FLORIDA'S CAPITAL SENTENCING STATUTE IN UNCONSTITUTIONAL ON ITS FACE AND AS APPLIED IN THIS CASS BECAUSE IT FAILS TO PREVENT THE ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS IMPOSITION OF THE DEATH PENALTY, AND IT VIOLATES THE CONSTITUTIONAL GUARANTEES OF DUE PROCESS AND PROHIBITICAL AGAINST CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT	SE JS HE
н.	THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. JONES RELIEF ON HICLAIM THAT HIS SENTENCE RESTS UPON AN UNCONSTITUTIONALIAUTOMATIC AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE, IN VIOLATION CONSTRUMED V. BLACK, MAYNARD V. CARTWRIGHT, HITCHCOCK VOUGGER, AND THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION	ΣΥ) F / .
CONCI	LUSION AND RELIEF SOUGHT	3 9
CERT	FICATE OF SERVICE) C
CERT	FICATE OF COMPLIANCE)1

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Ake v. Oklahoma, 105 S. Ct. 1087 (1985)	. 61
<u>Apprendi v. New Jersey</u> , 120 S.Ct. 2348 (2000)	. 83
<u>Arave v. Creech</u> , 507 U.S. 463, 473-475 (1993)	. 86
Banks v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly S521 (Fla. August 28, 1997)	. 81
Baty v. Balkcom, 661 F.2d 391 (5th Cir. 1982)	. 52
Blake v. Kemp, 758 F.2d 523 (11th Cir. 1985)	. 61
Booth v. Maryland, 482 U.S. 469 (1987)	. 70
Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963)	. 65
<u>Caldwell v. Mississippi</u> , 472 U.S. 320 (1985) 79	, 83
<u>Card v. State</u> , 652 So.2d 344 (Fla. 1995) 79	, 83
<u>Castro v. State</u> , 597 So.2d 259 (Fla. 1992)	. 17
<u>Clark v. State</u> , 379 So. 2d 97 (Fla. 1980)	. 81
<u>Cowley v. Stricklin</u> , 929 F.2d 640 (11th Cir. 1991)	. 80
<u>Cunningham v. Zant</u> , 928 F.2d 1006 (11th Cir. 1991)	. 61
Cuyler v. Sullivan.	

446	U.S.	335	(1980)									37
			(,									

<u>Davis v.</u>	<u>State</u>	,															
604	So.2d	794,	798	(Fla.	19	92)	•	•	•	•	•	•				52
Eddings v	z. Okla	ahoma	_														
	S. Ct.			32) .	•	•		•			•						80
Engberg v	, Meve	⊃r															
	P.2d 7		yo. 1	.991)	•	•		•			•						78
<u>Espinosa</u>	v Fl	orida															
	S.Ct.			2) .	•	•		•			•			73,	79,	85,	87
<u>Furman v</u>	. Georg	gia.															
	U.S. 2		1972)		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•				75
Gaskin v.	. State	≘,															
	So.2d		(Fla.	1999)	•	•	•			•		•			81,	85
Godfrey v	z. Geoi	rgia.															
	U.S. 4		1980)		•	•	•	•			•		•				65
Grossman	v. Sta	ate,															
	So.2d		(Fla.	1988)	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•				34
Grossman	v. Sta	ate.															
	So.2d		(Fla.	1997)	•		•			•			71,	81,	84,	87
<u>Hamblen v</u>	z. Dugo	ger.															
	So. 2d		9 (Fl	a. 19	89)			•			•			71,	81,	84,	87
<u>Harich v</u>	. State	٩.															
	So.2d		(Fla.	1989)	•		•			•						28
<u>Heath v.</u>	Jones																
	F.2d 1		(11th	cir.	19	91)	•			•						12
Herring v	z. Stat	-e.															
_	So.2d		(Fla.	1991)	•		•			•						82
<u> Hitchcock</u>	ς τ D1	ıaaer															
	S. Ct.			87).	•	•		•			•						49
<u> Hitchcock</u>	ς ν. Dι	ıgger	. ,														
	U.S. 3				•	•		•			•						66
Hodaes v	State	2															

595 So.2d 929 (Fla. 1992) 49
<pre>House v. Balkcom, 725 F.2d 608, 618 (11th Cir.), cert. denied, 469 U.S. 870 (1984)</pre>
<u>Jackson v. Dugger</u> , 837 F.2d 1469 (11th Cir. 1988)
<u>Jackson v. State</u> , 19 Fla. L. Weekly S215 Fla. April 24, 1994) 70
<u>Johnson v. Singletary</u> , 612 So.2d 575 (Fla. 1993)
<u>Jones v. State</u> , 569 So. 2d 1234 (Fla. 1990) 74, 81, 85
<u>Jones v. State</u> , 612 So. 2d 1370 (Fla. 1992)
<u>Kimmelman v. Morrison</u> , 477 U.S. 365 (1986)
<u>Lowenfield B. Phelps</u> , 484 U.S. 231 (1988)
<pre>Mason v. State, 489 So. 2d 734 (Fla. 1986)</pre>
<u>Mauldin v. Wainwright</u> , 723 F.2d 799 (11th Cir. 1984)
<pre>Maynard v. Cartwright,</pre>
<pre>Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988) 61</pre>
<u>Mullaney v. Wilbur</u> , 421 U.S. 684 (1975) 61
Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5th Cir. 1990) 73, 75, 83
Nibert v. State,

508	So.2d 1 (F	la. 198	37) .	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	73,	75,	83
<u>Nixon v.</u> 758	<u>State</u> , So.2d 618	(Fla. 2	2000)		•										87
	<u>v. State</u> , So. 2d 134	6 (Fla.	1990)										83,	84
_	n <u>an v. Stat</u> So. 2d 135		1984)											82
<u>Pait v. 9</u> 112	<u>State</u> , So. 2d 380	(Fla.	1959)		•										17
	<u>v. State</u> , So.2d 1257		1987)		•										54
Peede v. 748	<u>State</u> , So.2d 253	(Fla. 1	999)		•										66
	v. Florida U.S. 242 (•									34,	61
	<u>v. State</u> , So. 2d 783	(Fla.	1976)											34,	61
Ray v. St 403	<u>sate</u> , So. 2d 956	(Fla.	1981)		•	•									79
	on v. State So. 2d 109		1983)	•										17
	<u>v. Lewis</u> , S. Ct. 528	(1992)													34
	n v. State, WL 205094													84,	85
Rivera v 717	<u>. State</u> , So.2d 477	(Fla. 1	.998)												80
Rose v. S	<u>State</u> , So.2d 1181	(Fla.	1992)												66
Smith v. 708	<u>State</u> , So.2d 253	(Fla. 1	998)												80

<u>Sochor v. Florida</u> ,	
112 S. Ct. 2114 (1992)	. 85
<u>Spencer v. State</u> , 615 So.2d 688 (Fla. 1993)	. 17
<u>Starr v. Lockhart</u> , 23 F.3d 1280 (8th Cir. 1994)	. 34
<u>State v. Cherry</u> , 298 N.C. 86, 257 S.E.2d 551 (1979)	. 31
<u>State v. Dixon</u> , 283 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1973)	⁷ 5, 86
<u>State v. Gunsby</u> , 670 So.2d 920 (Fla. 1996)	75, 86
<u>Stephens v. State</u> , 2001 WL 252160 (Fla.)	. 17
<u>Stephens v. State</u> , 748 So.2d 1028 (Fla. 2000)	. 55
<u>Strickland v. Washington</u> , 466 U.S. 668 (1984)	32, 87
<u>Stringer v. Black</u> , 112 S. Ct. 1130 (1992)	. 16
<u>Taylor v. State</u> , 19 Fla. L. Weekly D1144 (1st DCA 1994)	. 67
<u>Teffeteller v. State</u> , 676 So.2d 369 (Fla. 1996)	. 85
Tennessee v. Middlebrooks, 840 S.W.2d 317 (Tenn. 1992)	. 36
<u>United States v. Fessel</u> , 531 F.2d 1278 (5th Cir. 1979)	. 53
<u>United States v. McCullah</u> , 76 F.3d 1087, 1110 (10th Cir. 1996) 35, 5	52, 70

<u>Valle v. State</u> , 705 So.2d 1333 (Fla. 1997)	75,	86
<u>Walberg v. Israel</u> , 766 F.2d 1071 (7th Cir. 1985)	75,	86
Weidner v. Wainwright, 708 F.2d 614, 616 (11th Cir. 1983)		67
Welty v. State, 402 So. 2d 1139 (Fla. 1981)		49
White v. State, 403 So.2d 331 (Fla. 1981)		87
Wood v. Georgia, 450 U.S. 261 (1981)		61
<u>Zant v. Stephens</u> , 103 S. Ct. 2733 (1983)		87
<u>Zant v. Stephens</u> , 462 U.S. 862 (1983)	34,	52

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

I. PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Mr. Jones was charged by indictment with two first-degree murders, armed robbery, burglary of a conveyance while armed and/or with an assault, shooting or throwing a deadly missile into an occupied vehicle, second-degree grand theft, and sexual battery (R. 5-6). The case was tried before the Honorable Robert R. Perry. Mr. Jones was represented at trial by Howard Pearl of the Public Defender's Office. The jury found Mr. Jones quilty on all counts except for the seconddegree grand theft, which was dismissed (R. 1650-51). At penalty phase, the jury recommended death sentences by a vote of 11-1 (R. 1830). The trial court followed the recommendation (R. 685-92). On direct appeal, this Court reversed the conviction for sexual battery, affirmed the remaining convictions, and remanded the case for a new sentencing hearing because of cumulative error at the penalty phase. <u>Jones v. State</u>, 569 So. 2d 1234 (Fla. 1990).

Mr. Jones' re-sentencing hearing was held in March, 1991, again before Judge Perry. Mr. Jones was again represented by Howard Pearl. The jury recommended death sentences by a vote of 10-2 (R2. 984-85). The trial court followed the recommendation (R2. 1020-34). On direct appeal, this Court

affirmed the death sentences. <u>Jones v. State</u>, 612 So. 2d 1370 (Fla. 1992).

Mr. Jones filed his amended 3.850 motion on November 10, 1997. (PC-R. 292-431). A "Huff" hearing was held on January 23, 1998 (PC-R. 626-95). On November 9, 1999, the lower court issued an order granting an evidentiary hearing on Claim XXIX of Mr. Jones 3.850 motion (PC-R. 505-07). The evidentiary was held on February 1, 2000 (PC-R. 535-95). Thereafter, on June 8, 2000, the lower court denied Mr. Jones 3.850 motion in its entirety (PC-R. 605-07). Mr. Jones filed his notice of appeal of the denial of his 3.850 motion on July 6, 2000 (PC-R. 608-09).

II. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

An evidentiary hearing was held on February 1, 2000 on Claim XXIX of Mr. Jones' 3.850 motion, which alleged that Mr. Jones was denied an individualized sentencing when the state attorney prepared the sentencing orders in violation of Florida's death penalty statute and the Florida and United States Constitutions and in contradiction of the established case law of this Court.

A. Testimony of Robert McLeod

Robert McLeod testified that he was the prosecutor at Mr. Jones' original trial proceedings (PC-R. 560). McLeod prosecuted two capital murder cases before Judge Perry, Mr.

²<u>Huff v. State</u>, 622 So.2d 982 (Fla. 1993).

Jones' case and that of Manuel Colina (PC-R. 572). McLeod testified that he drafted the sentencing order in both cases (PC-R. 572).

At the hearing, McLeod identified a document from the state attorney's files as a draft of the Jones sentencing orders (EX. 5; PC-R. 561). This draft "Judgment and Sentence" was for both victims (EX. 5; PC-R. 561). McLeod identified handwriting notations on the draft document as his own (EX. 5; PC-R. 562). McLeod also identified certified copies of the final orders entered by Judge Perry at the 1988 proceedings (EX. 1; PC-R. 570).³ Comparing the draft document to the final order entered by Judge Perry, McLeod testified that it appears his holographic entries were incorporated verbatim in the final order (PC-R. 570).

McLeod testified that the draft was prepared by him at Judge Perry's request (PC-R. 563). Further, McLeod testified that the content of the draft would have been based on what McLeod believed the evidence to have been (Id.) McLeod recalled that in either the Jones or Colina case, Judge Perry had specifically stated to him, "based on the evidence and the statute, give me an order" (Id.). McLeod testified that he

³Judge Perry signed two sentencing orders in 1988 and two orders in 1991, signing one as to each victim both times.

did not receive guidance from any other person or party in writing the orders (PC-R. 562-63).

McLeod testified that he knew of no input that defense counsel, Howard Pearl, had in drafting the sentencing order (PC-R. 566). McLeod further testified that he has no recollection of providing anyone with a copy of the draft (Id.).

McLeod stated that he is confident that, at the time of sentencing, his draft order had been sent to Judge Perry, who then read it at the sentencing hearing (PC-R. 569). He further identified the type of the final orders as consistent with that used by the state attorney's office (PC-R. 571).

B. Testimony of Richard Whitson

Richard Whitson testified that he prosecuted Mr. Jones'
1991 re-sentencing (PC-R.541). At the evidentiary hearing,
Whitson identified a document from the state attorney's files
with the word "wrong" written on the left side of the first
page (EX. 2; PC-R. 542). Whitson testified that he believed
he recognized the word "wrong" as being made in his
handwriting (PC-R. 546). Whitson further testified that a
circle on page one of the document is consistent with the way
he would mark a document (PC-R. 543). Whitson testified that
an "x" marking on page three of the document was not his

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