## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

RANDALL SCOTT JONES,

Appellant,

vs. 1492 CASE NO. SC00-

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR PUTNAM COUNTY, FLORIDA

# ANSWER BRIEF OF THE APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

CAROL M. DITTMAR
Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar No. 0503843
2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700
Tampa, Florida 33607-2366
(813) 801-0600
FAX (813) 356-1292

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

#

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

Jones' allegations are clearly insufficient to warrant any relief. Jones does not identify any particular information which was not known to Dr. Krop, and does not attempt to explain how any such information could have made a difference. He offers no specific facts to support his conclusion that Dr. Krop was not prepared and did not provide adequate assistance. See, Occhicone v. State, 768 So. 2d 1037, 1050, n. 10 (Fla. 2000) (claim that counsel were ineffective for failing to provide mental health experts with background information without merit because Occhicone did not allege what information counsel failed to provide).

As noted previously, Dr. Krop testified extensively at trial about Jones' childhood and background; Jones has not identified any errors or omissions in the background testimony given by Krop at trial. Furthermore, he has not alleged how the

provision of any additional background information would have affected Krop's opinions at the time of trial. Jones' failure to allege any information which should have been, but was not, provided to the expert precludes the granting of relief in this He has simply not provided sufficient facts to have warranted an evidentiary hearing. He has not identified any specific deficiency with regard to his mental health evaluation or with Dr. Krop's conclusions. He has not cited any relevant mental health evidence which was available at the time but not considered by his expert. Jones does not even claim that a new expert could offer additional, favorable mental testimony, but even if he did, such would not be a sufficient basis for relief. Engle v. Dugger, 576 So. 2d 696, 700-01 (Fla. 1991) ("This is not a case ... in which a history of mental psychiatric hospitalizations retardation and had overlooked"); Correll v. State, 558 So. 2d 422, 426 (Fla. 1990); Hill v. Dugger, 556 So. 2d 1385, 1388 (Fla. 1990), cert. denied, 116 S. Ct. 196 (1995); Stano v. State, 520 So. 2d 278, 281 (Fla. 1988) ("That Stano has now found experts whose opinions may be more favorable to him is of little consequence").

Mental health evaluations may be considered constitutionally inadequate so as to warrant a new sentencing hearing where the mental health expert ignored "clear indications" of either mental retardation or organic brain damage. Rose v. State, 617

So. 2d 291, 295 (Fla.), cert. denied, 510 U.S. 903 (1993); State v. Sireci, 502 So. 2d 1221, 1224 (Fla. 1987). In order to obtain an evidentiary hearing on this claim, Jones must have alleged more than the conclusory argument presented in his motion. Engle, 576 So. 2d at 702. Since he has failed to specifically identify any inadequacies in his mental health examination, or to otherwise show that his mental health assistance was constitutionally ineffective, this claim was properly summarily denied.

In addition, the facts which Jones asserts are refuted by the transcript of Dr. Krop's testimony. Krop stated that he had reviewed a great deal of background information, and had interviewed witnesses familiar with Jones' background (RS. V5/818-819). He had conducted extensive testing of Jones, both before the initial trial and again prior to the resentencing (RS. V5/816-818). He related information about Jones' prior mental health history, including his hospitalizations as a child and the diagnoses of schizophrenic syndrome in adolescence and borderline personality disorder, all of which he found to be consistent with his own conclusions (RS. V5/829, 832). Since the record demonstrates that Krop performed all the essential tasks required by Ake, including an extensive evaluation with neurological testing, reviewing numerous documents, interviewing individuals familiar with Jones' background, and considering

Jones' extensive psychiatric history, the request for an evidentiary hearing on this issue was properly denied. See, Mann v. State, 770 So. 2d 1158, 1164 (Fla. 2000) (hearing on this claim properly denied where record reflected that Mann's expert performed the essential tasks required).

Jones' assertion that counsel should have used Dr. Krop during the guilt phase to support a defense of second-degree murder is similarly insufficient. Jones does not explain how this testimony would be admissible. See, Chestnut v. State, 538 So. 2d 820 (Fla. 1989) (evidence of diminished mental capacity insanity inadmissible to establish lack οf premeditation). Jones does not allege any facts from Krop's testimony, or any other opinion, suggesting that Krop would have testified that Jones was not capable of premeditation. Krop's testimony does not address premeditation, and does not offer any basis for consideration of this claim. Absent some indication that Krop would have supported the defense theory, there was no reason for an evidentiary hearing to explore this issue.

Once again, Jones' claim in this regard is factually insufficient. LeCroy, 727 So. 2d at 239; Jackson, 633 So. 2d at 1054. This Court must affirm the ruling below because claims which are facially invalid or conclusively refuted by the record are properly summarily denied. Freeman, 761 So. 2d at 1061; Peede, 748 So. 2d at 257. On the facts of this case, the trial

court's summary denial of this claim was proper.

### E. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel at Guilt Phase

Jones' next claim is a myriad of conclusory statements asserting counsel's alleged failure to adequately litigate the motions to suppress statements and evidence. Jones characterizes his arrest and extradition as illegal but makes no showing of any impropriety as to his custody. He criticizes counsel for failing to explore potential mental health issues which, he asserts, would have established his particular mental and emotional difficulties that drove him to "confess all," rendering the post-arrest waiver of his rights invalid.

Jones once again fails to provide any particular basis for relief. He does not attempt to identify any possible police arrest, extradition, or misconduct in his custodial The fact that mental problems interrogation. may have contributed to his willingness to waive his right to remain silent would not be a reason to suppress his statements. See, Colorado v. Connelly, 479 U.S. 157 (1986). His repeated assertions that counsel should have presented Dr. Krop as a guilt phase witness and should not have conceded guilt in his closing argument have been addressed elsewhere, and clearly do not compel any relief. His claims that counsel did not adequately cross examine witnesses and failed to secure a DNA

expert are also insufficient, since neither the witnesses nor the advantage of having a DNA expert are even generally identified. Such conclusory allegations cannot serve as a basis for an evidentiary hearing. <u>Kennedy</u>, 547 So. 2d at 913.

Once again, although he faults counsel for allegedly failing to investigate, he characteristically fails to offer any information or evidence that could have been discovered had additional investigation been undertaken. His failure to allege specific facts or to suggest how the outcome of his trial could have been affected had the case been tried differently establishes that again no claim worthy of an evidentiary hearing has been presented. As in Ragsdale v. State, 720 So. 2d 203, 208 (Fla. 1998), "[Jones] has provided insufficient facts as to what would have been introduced or how the outcome would have been different had counsel acted otherwise" to obtain an evidentiary hearing. Thus, the court below properly summarily denied his allegation of guilt phase ineffective assistance of counsel.

Once again, his claim in this regard is factually insufficient. See, <u>LeCroy</u>, 727 So. 2d at 239 (noting defendant's burden to allege *specific facts* which are not conclusively rebutted by the record and which demonstrate a deficiency on the part of counsel that was detrimental to the defendant). The trial court's summary denial of this claim was

proper.

### F. State Withheld Material, Exculpatory Evidence

Jones also claims that the trial court should have granted an evidentiary hearing on his assertion of a violation of <u>Brady v. Maryland</u>, 373 U.S. 83 (1963). He alleges that witness interview notes which would have revealed a witness recounting a rumor that Jones "does drugs" and is "always high" and "frequently drunk" should have been disclosed to the defense prior to trial. According to Jones, if his jury had heard of his history of drug abuse and the effect of his substance abuse on his mental illness, he would not have been sentenced to death.

Jones' does not identify the particular witness that allegedly provided this information to law enforcement. However, it is clear that information about Jones' drug use, if true, would have been known by Jones prior to trial. Of course, if the witness was only repeating rumors of drug use that were not true, such information would be neither relevant nor material. If Jones did in fact use drugs, this information would have been known to him and therefore not the basis of a true Brady claim. See, Occhicone, 768 So. 2d at 1042 (Brady claim properly summarily denied where defendant knew of evidence allegedly withheld). On these facts, summary denial was

appropriate.

### G. Cumulative Error

Jones also asserts that the court below should have permitted his claim of cumulative error to be litigated at the evidentiary hearing. This Court has routinely found this claim to be procedurally barred in postconviction proceedings. See, <a href="Moven v. State">Owen v. State</a>, 773 So. 2d 510, 515 (Fla. 2000). Furthermore, since no showing of constitutional error has been made with regard to any of the claims currently or previously presented, no relief is warranted. In the absence of any demonstrated errors, this claim must be rejected as meritless. <a href="Downs v. State">Downs v. State</a>, 740 So. 2d 506, 509, n. 5, (Fla. 1999); <a href="Mendyk v. State">Mendyk v. State</a>, 592 So. 2d 1076, 1081 (Fla. 1992).

## H. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel for Failure to Object to Prosecutorial Misconduct

Jones also asserts that he should have been granted an evidentiary hearing on his claim of prosecutorial misconduct, because it included an allegation that his trial counsel was ineffective for failing to object. It is facially apparent that this claim is an improper attempt to recast a procedurally barred direct appeal issue into a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, and therefore summary denial was appropriate. See, Robinson v. State, 707 So. 2d 688, 699 (Fla.

1998). Even if considered, however, the claim did not warrant an evidentiary hearing.

Jones cites two instances of alleged impropriety: the prosecutor asking potential jurors during voir dire if they could vote for a death sentence if the aggravating circumstances "required or called for" it, and the prosecutor's explanation, in closing argument, of the existence of aggravating factors. Jones' assertion that the prosecutor, in these instances, inferred that the penalty determination was a counting rather than a weighing process is clearly refuted by the record. transcript reflects that the jury was repeatedly and correctly instructed on the law and on their obligation to weigh any aggravating factors against any mitigating factors. The judge and both attorneys consistently reminded the jury of the proper Nothing in any of the comments by the legal analysis. prosecutor suggests any other process. Since there is no showing of prosecutorial misconduct, defense counsel could not be deemed ineffective for failing to object. Thus, the court below properly summarily denied this claim.

# I. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel for Failing to Object to Consideration of Improper Victim Impact Evidence

Jones next claims that his trial attorney should have objected to the judge's consideration of improper victim impact evidence, and that this allegation warranted an evidentiary

hearing below. He relies on a presentence investigation which included a statement by one of the victims' mother indicating her opinion that Jones should receive the death sentence. Once again, this is an issue which could have been raised on direct appeal, and Jones cannot avoid the application of a procedural bar by recasting the claim as one of ineffective assistance of counsel. Robinson, 707 So. 2d at 699. In addition, Jones does not identify any support for his claim that the trial court considered this statement in the PSI when sentencing Jones to death. The lack of specific facts to support this claim renders it facially insufficient, and the court below properly denied the claim without a hearing.

In conclusion, all of the issues summarily denied by the court below were properly resolved. No evidentiary hearing was warranted on any of the claims presented in this issue, and therefore this Court must affirm the denial of postconviction relief as to these claims.

### **ISSUE III**

# WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN SUMMARILY DENYING OTHER LEGAL CLAIMS AS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

Jones' final issue challenges the finding of a procedural bar as to a number of other claims presented in his postconviction motion. The law is well established that these claims, all of which could and should have been raised on direct appeal, are clearly procedurally barred. In fact, Jones does not even attempt to demonstrate that the lower court's rulings were erroneous, but repeatedly asks this Court to reconsider prior opinions, overrule precedent, and grant relief. No reasonable basis for doing so has been offered.

Because these issues are not cognizable in postconviction and therefore not properly before this Court, no standard of review is applicable.

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